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ICE
:e is hereby given IhnI (he AnnunI General Meeting of the Members ol the Company will be held al Somany 
erencB 1 iail of MCC Chamber of Commerce & Industry, 15B Hemant Basu Sarani, Kolkala-700001 on Monday, 
,2th August, 2013 al 11.30 A.M. to transact the following business:-

To receive and adopt the Profit and Loss Account of the Company for the year ended 31sl March, 2013 and 
Balance Sheet as at that dale together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To elect a Director in place of Shri Binod Khailan, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 
re-election.

To elect a Director in place of Shri Dilip Pratapsingh Goculdas, wlio retires by rotation and being eligible offers 
himself for re-elcclioii.

To appoint Auditors and (o fix Iheir remuneration, 

ecial Business 

an Ordinary Resulution

“RESOLVED THAT Slui Suresh Kumar Bangur, be and is hereby airpointed as a Director ol the Company 
liable lo retire Iry rolalion.”

I a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant lo the provisions of Sections 198, 269. 309 and read with Schedule XIII and all 
other applicable luovisions, if any, of lire Companies Act. 19.56. or arty slalutory amendnrent or modification 
thereto the Contpany hereby approves the appointment of Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur, as a Whole-Time Director 
of the Company designated as Executive Director, for a period of 3 (three) years with effect from 13th August, 
2013 otr the lemis and conditions including remuneration as are set out iit the draft agreenrenl to be entered into 
between the Company and Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur, as laid before the meeting, which agreement is hereby 
specifically approved and sanclioned with liberty lo the Board of Directors of the Coinjrany lo alter, vary and 
modify the temis and conditions of the said appointment and/or remuneration and/or agreement, in such manner 
as may be agreed upon by anil between Ihe Board ol Directors and Suresh Kumar Bangur as not to exceed the 
limits specified in Schedule Xlll of Ihe Companies Act, 1956 including any amendment lliereof from time to lime 
being in force".

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything herein above staled, where in any financial year the 
Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, Ihe Company do pay Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur. remu­
neration by way ol salaiy. perquisites and allowances nol exceeding Ihe ceiling/limils specified under Schedule XHI 
of the Companies Act, 1956".

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ihe Board of Direclors of Ihe Comp''ny be and is hereby authorised lo do and 
perfonn such acts, deeds, matters, or tilings and take such steps as may be necessary, expedient, or desirable to 
give effect lo Ihe alotesaid Resolulions".

By Order of the Board
Registered Office:
14, Netaji Subhas Road.
Kolkala-700001. M.D.Damani
Dated: 28lh May, 2013 Director & Secretary
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NOTES:
1. A Member entilled lo nttend and vote is enlilled lo appoint a proxy to allend and vote instead of himself and the

proxy need not be a member of Ihe Company. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company
nol less than 48 liours before Ihe commencement of Ihe meeting.

2. Members who liold shares in Demnlerialized fomr are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID nos. for 
easier idenlificalion of altendance at Ihe meeting.

3. The Register of Members and Sliare Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 1st August, 2013 to 
12th August 2013 (both days inclusive).

4. A member desirous of obtaining any infonnation concerning Ibe accounis and operation of the Company is
requested to send his queries lo Ihe Company nt least 7 days before the dale of Ihe meeting, so that the
information required by the member is made available at Ihe meeting.

5. Members who liave nol encashed their dividend warrant for F.Y.2006-07 are requesfed to write immediately to 
the Company.

6. Pursuant to Sedioii 20.'3A of Ihe Companies Act, 1956, as amended: -

a) Ali unclaimed/unpaid dividends uplo Ihe Financial Year 1993-94 liave been transferred to the General 
Revenue Account of Central Governnienl. Members concerned are requested to claim the amount from the 
Regislrnr of Companies, WesI Bengal.

b) Unclaimed dividend for Ihe finandal years 1994-95 lo 1998-99 liave been transferred to the Investor 
Fducalion and Proledion Fund of llie Cenlral Government and no claim be made in respect of dividend 
from Hie Company.

7. Members allending llie meeling are reiiuesletl to bring Iheir copy of llie Aiiiiual Reporl with them to the meeting.

8. As per the provisions o( the Companies Act, 1956, as amended, facility tor making nomination is available to 
individual shareholder. I lie prescrilied form can be obtained from the Company.

9. SFBI lias made hading in shares of Hie Company compulsory in demalerialised form for all investors w.e.f. 
27/2/2001 under ISIN:INF398C01016. Shareholders are requested lo get their share holding dematerialised.

10. Minisli-y of Coqiorale Affairs vide ils circular no.17/2011 dated 21/04/2011 & 18/2011 dl.29/04/2011 has taken 
Green liiilialive in Hie Corjrorale Governance by allowing Hie companies lo send various notices/documents 
including audited financial results, directors reporl, auilors report, general meeting notices to the members through 
electronic mode lo Hie registered email addresses of the shareholders.

Members are Iherefore re<)uesled to register their email addresses with Hie Company at its Registered Office and 
also keep a note lo inform any change in your email address.

11. As per SFBTs circular in respect of Iransadioii involving transfer of shares in physical fomi of a listed company, it 
is mandatory for llie Iraiisferee(s) lo funiisli copy of PAN card for regislralion of transfer of Shares.

12. Details of Direclor seeking appoiiilment/re-apiiointment;

i. Slirl B lnod K liallan aged 70 years is lioliling degree of B.Com. & M.B.A. (Geneva) is on Hie Board of Director 
of llie Company, since December 1990. He is an eminent businessman witli wide experience in the business of 
Timber, Tea. ,lule. I'erliiizer, Tyre-Tubes and Soft Drinks, lie is also a Diredor of Art Finance & Trade Ltd. and 
independent Diredor in Fledrosleel CasHiig Ltd. I le is member of Rotary Club of Cenlral Calcutta and actively 
involved in social service, specially in Hie upliilmenl of villages around Kolkata. I le along with his family members 
holds 570560 Eiiuily Sliares in Hie Company,

ii. Shri D ilip P ralnpsingh G oculdas aged .54 years, has been appointed Diredor on Hie Board of the Company 
since 2011. lie is an induslrialisi willi over 3 decades of experience in Industry. Commerce, Corporate Affairs 
and Inlernational Trade. I le lias been acHuely involved in setting-up and ninnagemenl of a number of companies



in (he field of Chemicals, Fertiliser and Fngineering. tfe is curreniiy on the Board of Indus-Agro Services and 
Consultants Private Ltd. The Greens Textile Manufacturing Company Private Ltd. and Chairman of Poseidon 
Breeding Private l.ld.. He is also Trustee of Bombay Gowiakshak Trust & the member of Managing Commiltee of 
Bombay Gowrakshak Mandalee.

iii. Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur aged 60 years is a Commerce Graduate. He has a business experience of over 35 
years with wide experience in Fertilizer, Paper & Plastic Packaging Industry. He is also Director of Rajyavardhan 
Vanijya Pvt. Ltd., Swastik Global Papers Pvt. Ltd., Mani Packaging Pvt. Ltd. & Abhinandan Goods Pvt. Ltd. He 
was Regional Chainnan of Indian Chemical Association, Mumbai and Member of SSP Advisory Committee of 
Fertilizer Associalion of India, New Delhi. He along with his family members holds 156340 Equily Shares of the 
Company.

13. All documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying Explanatory Statement are open for inspection at the 
Registered Office of Ihe Company on all working days between 11 A.M. and 1 P.M. upto Ihe date of the Annual 
General Meeting.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
llerrt no. 5

Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur was appointed as an Additional Director of Ihe Com|)any by the Board on 13th August, 
2012 .

In lenns o( Seclion 260 of the Companies Ad. 1956 he holds office upto this Annual General Meeting. Notice under 
Section 257 of the Companies Ad, 1956 from a member proposing the candidature of Shri Bangur as a Director of the 
Company has been received along with a deposit of Rs. 500/- signifying his intention lo propose Ihe candidature of Shri 
Bangur for tlie office of llie Director and move tire resolution as set out in item 5 of Ihe notice.

Shri Bangnr is a Commerce Graduate and has business experience of over 35 years out of which over 30 years is in 
Ferlili.ser, Paper & I'laslic Packing industry. 1 le has been Ihe Regional Cliaimian of Indian Chemical Associalion, 
Mumbai and is a nieniher of SSP Advisory Committee, l"ertilizer Association of India. New Delhi. In view of his vast 
experience, the Board of Directors has cotrsidered il appropriate to induct Shri Bangur on tlie Board.

The Board considers il in the interest ol the Company to avail the services ot Sri Bangur and accordingly commend Ihe 
resolution for your approval.

None of the Directors, except Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur, is in any way regarded as concerned or interested in the 
aforesaid resolution.

Hem No. 6

The Board of Directors ot the Company in its meeting held on 13th August, 2012 considered it appropriate to appoint 
Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur as a Whole Time Director desirjnated as Executive Director for a period of three years w.e.f, 
13lli August 2012 subject lo approval of the members of Ihe Company. An agreement was entered into between the 
Company and Shri Bangur, in respect of his appointment, inler-alia, containing the following terms arrd conditions.

Salary : - Rs.l,00,0(X)/- (o Rs. 2,50,000/- subject lo revision by the Board fronr time to lime.

Perquisites :
(i) f louse Rent Allowance ■. As per rules of the Company

(ii) Medical Expenses : Reimbursement of medical expenses for self, spouse, dependent children / parent equivalent to 
one month's salaiy in a year.

(iii) Leave Travel Assislaiice : ReimbuisemenI of actual travelling expenses for self, spouse, de[jendenl children /
parents equivalent to one month's salary in a year.

(iv) Car : Free use of Company's Car with Driver and / or reimbursement of expenses incurreiid thereto.

(v) Telephone : Free mobile and leleplione facility at residence and / or reimbursement of expenses incurred thereto.

□



(vi) Leave Encashment : As per rules of Ihe Company.

(vii) Club Fees; Payment of Club fee of two clubs.

(viii) Personal Accident insurance ; Payment o( all accident premium for self, spouse and dependent children subject to 
a maximum of Rs. 10,000 in a year. '

(xi) Reimbursement of Expenses : Reimbursement of all entertainment, travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred 
during the course of and in ccmneclion with Ihe business of the Company.

(x) Any other perquisites as may be allowed by Hie Board.

The provision of car for use on Company's business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites. 
Personal long distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be hilled by Hie Company to Shri 
Bangur.

In the event of absence or inadequacy of piotils. Ihe Executive Director shall be enlilled to receive a remuneration 
including allowances, perquisiles etc. as are recommended by Ihe Remuneration Commiltee to the Board of Directors 
but not exceeding Hie limits as may be prescribed in Ihe Schedule XIII of Ihe Companies Act, 1956 as amended as 
minimum remuneration.

The above also may be healed as an abstract of Ihe lerms and conditions governing Ihe appointmenl and remuneration 
of Shri Bangur as Execulive Director, pursuant lo Seclion 302 of Ihe Companies Ad, 1956.

The Board commend the resolution for approval of Ihe members.

None of the Directors, except Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur is in any way regarded as concerned or interested in the 
aforesaid resolution.

Information pursuant to Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 In respect of the appointment of a 
manaserial person and paying specified remuneration.
General Infonnation : 'Hie Company was iiicoiporaled in 1949 and engaged in the business of manufacturing of Single 
Super Phosphale Fertiliser and Sodium Silico Fluoride.

Infonnation ahout the Appointee : Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur aged 60 years is a Commerce Graduate. He has a 
business experience of over 35 years with wide experience in Ferlilizer, Paper & PlasHc Packing Induslry. He is also 
Director of Rajyavardlmn Vaiiijya Pvt. Ltd., Swaslik Global Papers Pvt. Ltd., Mani Packaging Pvt. Eld. & Abhinandan 
Goods Pvt. Ltd. He was Regional Cliairman of Indian Chemical Associalion, Mumbai and Member of SSP Advisory 
CohimiHee of Fertilizer Associalion of India, New Delhi. He has no pecuniary relation directly or indirectly with the 
Company or telalionsliip witli Hie nianagernenl personnel except lie holds 4.33'Xi Equity Sliares in tlie Company.

Other infonnation : The Company earned an operational profit of Rs. 258 lakhs for the year ending 31-3-2013 
comparative lo Rs. 587 lakli in the previous year. After providing financial expenses, depreciation, tax provisions & extra 
ordinary expenses, Company made a loss of Rs. 163 lakh in Ihe current year compare to profit of Rs. 160 lakli in the 
previous year.

In order to reduce Subsidy burden, Governnieiit of India steeply reduced Subsidy on Ferlilizer during 2012-13 and 
allowed nianufadurers to increase selling price. Such sleep increase in selling price in a short period could not be fully 
passed on the markel, lieiice Company suffered loss.

Disclosures : Remuneration package of the appoinlee is specified in Item 6 of Ihe explanatory statement fanning a part 
of notice calling the Annual General Meeling.

B



Rs. in lacs
Current year Preuious year

6,234 7,535
259 588

442 368

57 46

(■240) 173

(80) 13

3 —

(163) 160

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
TO THE M EM B E R S

The Directors ivesent their Aitiiual Report together with the Audited  Accoimls of the Coiitpaiiy for the year ended  on 
S ls l  March. 2013

FINANCIAL RESULTS
T u m o m r & Other Incomes 

Operating I’mfit (ERITDA)
Finance Cosl 
Deprecialion 

Net Profit (Loss)

Tax Prouisian Net 

Share Issue flx;«aises 

Profit (Loss) after tax 

O PERAT IO N

l-’roduclioii Sale of Single Super Piiospliale (SSI-’) Fertiliser (Powder & Granulated) of your Gompany was at 56321 
Melricl on (Ml ) fit 53383 M l  respecliuely during lire year, compared lo 67514 M l' fit 71696 MT in (Ire Previous Year, 
Comirany also Prrrducetl fi Sold 294 M l' f!r 274 MT of Sodium Silico l^luoride, a Value Addetl PioducI during Ihe year 
compared lo 208 M T fir 205 MT in Ihe previous year.

Govl. of India reducetl Subsidy on SSP Itertiliser from Rs. 5539/-Per Melric lone (PMT) for the year 2011-12 lo 
Rs. 3673/-PMT for the year 2012-13, a sleep cut of over 33%. Since prices of fertiliser are iiraiket delemiined by 
manufacturers themselves fronr 2010 onwards, it was assumed that reduction in Subsidy will be recovered from market 
by respective manufacturers by increasing Iheir selling prices, balancing company's total realisation / revenue when 
erihanceti subsidy was payable.

Sale of Co’s product was leslricled due to tlraughl in early part of Kharif in West Bengal coupled willi inilial resistance 
from farmers for sudden fit sleep increase iir prices of Pertilisers, However, of late farirters are accepting new prices and 
demand is slabilising.

1 luge (unchecked) iinpoil of finished Peililiser tluiing Iasi Iwo years, much in excess of demand and temporary reduction 
in consum|)lion due lo abnormal increase in market jjrices of Perliiisers has resulled in vei-y high inveniory ot finished 
ferliliser (imporled and iirtligenous) within Ihe trade diannel.
Due to factors discussetl above, your Com|rany could nol fully pass on increased cosi (including lieep cut in Subsidy) to 
Ihe niirrkel. 'I'lris resulled iir tjperating profit tr( (EBITDA) Rs. 259 lakh only iit Ihe year compared lo Rs. 588 lakh in the 
previous year.

Abnormal delay in payment of Subsidy by Govl. of India and liigher credit (I'eiror Sc Amount) to Wholesalers, further 
raised finance cost of Ihe Comirany.

After provitling for financial cost, deprerrialion, lax adjuslnienlts fi share issue expenses, your Company reported a net 
loss of Rs. 163 lakh in Ibis year coitrpare lo net prolit of Rs. 160 lakh in the |«evious year.

In view of losses in current year, Diiedors regret Iheir inabilily to declare any dividend.

The Company continues lo kee)) on hold the production of Sulphuric Add as Ihe overall business dynamics do not 
warrant resumplion of |)iodudion.

As reported Iasi year ahonl modelnizalion of Granulation Piant, we are )ileased to inform that refurbished Granulation 
Plant has flailed since 19lh .lanuary, 2013. Now this Plant consume coal as fuel in place earlier Furnace oil. Company 
is ready with Granulation I4anl but Govl. of India has tieferretl STOP sale of Powder SSP for one more year from May- 
201,3 lo May-2014. I lowever, Co. has started Granulation Plant albeit in low capacity.

In O lder lo give lrans)iarency and lo make Ihe availability visible. DepartmenI of Ferliliser, Government of India has 
launched a website in their portal, wherein Ihe inanufadurers / marketers of fertilisers have lo update Ihe information of



purchase of raw mnlerials, procluclion and sale of fertiliser on daily liasis. This has furtlier scrolled down and all Ihe 
dealers (wliolesnlers & retailers) are being required to update the details of availabilily of fertiliser vvilh lliem. This 
process is on llie initial stage and is expected lo tie regular by Ihe end of ensuing Rnbi Season 2013. Linking lo lliis, 
Governnieiit of India is progressing on Iheir plan lo give subsidy direclly to Hie farmers. I'lie trial of this is in progress.

PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OF SHARES
As per ap)iroval of Hie members lo increase Hie Authorised Capital of the Company in Hie last Annual General Meeling 
and in lerms of the specific approval received from Hie Members of (he Coni|iany by Postal Ballol for preferential issue of 
shares, your Company lias successfully raised Rs. 450 lacs by issuing 18,75.000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a 
premium of Rs. 14/- per sliare on Preferenlial Basis to Promoters and olhers for General (Regular) Capital Expenditure 
and lo shore up net Woikiny Capital margin. As a Result o( Preferential Allotment, tlie paid-up Equily Share Capital of 
Ihe Company lias increased from Rs. 173.25 lacs to Rs. 360.75 lacs and crealed a balance in Share Premium Account 
lo the tune of Rs. 262.50 lacs.

CREDIT RATING
As per BASEL II norms, Company's working capilal facilities has been raled hy CARE, wherein 1-oiig Term Bank 
Eacililies has lieen raled as CARE B+ (proiiounceci Single B plus) and Short Term Bank Facilities has been rated as 
CARE A4 (pronounced A I'our),
RISK & CONCERN
Your Company's product is agro input. Hie demand of which is dependent on good monsoons and fair climatic 
condilions besides GovemmenI policy.
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OU TGO
Information as per Sediou 217(l)(e) of the Companies Acl, 1956 read wilh Comiianies (Disclosure of I’arliculars in the 
Report of Hie Boaid of Diieclors) Rules, 1988 are given in Annexure A and [onus a part of this Repoit.

FIXED DEPOSITS
Your Company has nol accepted any deposit from llie public under Seclion 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the 
Deposit Rules during Ihe year under review.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
riie relation wilh Hie employees remained cordial.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As per Seclion 217(2A) of Hie Companies Acl. 1956 read wiHi Companies (Parliculars of Employees) Rules, 1975 are 
given as per Annexure B and forms a |>ail of this Report

DIRECTORS
Shri Binod Kltailaii retires by rotnlion and being eligible, offers himself for re-a|ipoinlmenl.

Sliri Dilip I’rntapsiiigli tfoculdas relires liy rotalion and being eligible, offers liimseif (or re-appointnieiit.

Sliri Suresh Kumar Bangur lias been appointed by the Board on 13tli August 2012 as an Addiliona! Director and Whole 
Time Director. In lerms of Seclion 260 of Ihe Coni]ianies Acl, 1956 lie holds office as Additional Director uplo this 
Annual General Meeling and being eligilile offers liiniself for re-appointment.

Approval of Hie sliareliolders is souglil for Hie appoinlment of Shri Bangur as Whole-Time Direclor designated as 
Execulive Director w.e.l. KHli August 2012 on Hie terms and condilions as mentioned in Hie resolution which are placed 
before you as per explaiialory slalerneiit allaclied lo Hie notice.

f’ailiculars of the Dircclois seeking appoirilmeiil / re-aiipoiiilineiil are appended in Hie iioles forming part of Ihe notice 
for Hie ensuing Annual (.ieneral Meeting

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
in pursuance lo Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Ad, 1956. Hie Board of Directors lieieby stale:

1. that in the piegiaialion ot llie Annual Accounis. the applicable accounting standards liave fiee.n followed along 
willi proper explanation relating lo riialeiial depnilures;

□



2. lhal Ihe Directors have selected sucli accounting policies and applied Iheni consistenlly and made judgments and 
estimates lhal ate reasonable and prudent so as lo give a true and fair view of Ihe slate of affairs of the Company 
at the end of Ihe financial year and of Ihe Profit or Loss of Ihe Company for the year;

3. llial tlie Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance willi Ihe provisions of Hie Companies Act. 1956 for safeguarding Hie assets of Hie Company and for 
preventing and delecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. that Hie Directors liave arranged preparation of Hie Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

CO RPO RAT E  G O V ERN AN C E

As per Lisling AgreemenI Coqiorale Goveriiam e lias become applicable lo Hie Company at Hie fag end of financial year
i.e. from 21sl Marcli 2013. In accordance with Hial. three coniniiHees namely Audil Coniniiltee, Reniuneralion Conimiltee 
and Sliare Transfer & Sliareholders/liivestor.s Grievance Coniniillee have been formed and mandated wilh terms of 
reference, powers and rules conform lo Hie requirement of Seclion 292A of Ihe Companies Acl 1956 and as specified in 
Clause 49 of Ihe l.isling AgreemenI Meelings of Hiese Comniillees are being lield in current year and report thereof will 
fie placed before you in Hie nexi Annual General Meeling. 1 lowever, Ihe Company has always pracHced principles of 
Corporate Governance and .some higliliglils of same are annexed to this reporl.

M AN AG EM EN T  D ISC U SS IO N  A N D  A N A LY S IS

Maiiagenieiil Discussion fit Analysis Reporl as required under Listing AgreemenI is annexed and fomis part of this report. 

C O ST  AU D IT

Cenlral Governnienl has approved Ihe appoinlnieni of M/s S. Gupta & Co., Cost Accounlants for conducting Cost Audit 
of Lerliliser and Sulpiiuric Acid for the year 2012-13. Since there was no produclion of Sulphuric Add in 2012-13, an 
applicalion is being moved lo Hie Ministry of Coqiorale Affairs, New Delhi, requcsling Hiem lo keep Cost Audit Order for 
Sulphuric Acid in abeyniice lill Hie produclion of Sulphuric Add re commences.

IN SU R A N C E

All llie properlies of llie Company are adequalely insured.

A U D IT O R S  &  AU D IT O R S  REPO RT

Messers, llalliboi, Purohit & Darbari. Chartered Accounlants, the Auditors of Hie Company retire at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and are eligible for re-appoinlmenl.

Tlie Hoard commend Iheir appointment.

The Notes on (inandal slalenieiits referred to in Audilors Report are self explanatory and do not call for any furlticr 
conimenls,

A D EQ U A C Y  O F INTERNAL CO N TRO LS

The Company has adequate Internal Coiilrol System conimensurale lo ils size and business. M/s R.D.Daga & Co., 
Cliarlered Accouiilanis, lias been appointed Internal Audilors lo conduct internal audil on Hie company's activities.

A C K N O W LE D G E M EN T

Tlie Directors wisli lo record llieir apprecialioii of dedication and coniniilnients ot Ihe employees and Ihe teamwork 
displayed by Hiem. Your Directors are also thankful lo Stale Bank of India, Stale Bank ot Mysore, Syndicate Bank, 
Cenlral Governnienl, Stale Government, Sliareliolders, Customers, Dealers, Vendors & Auditors for the continuous 
support and assistance.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of 
The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Kolkata Suresh Kumar Bangur Biiiod Khaitan
Dated: May 28, 2013 Execuliue Director Director



ANNEXUKB TO DIHF.C lO R S ' HEPOHT
A, liilon iia lion  as jjc r Socliun 217(l)(e) of llip  Companies Ad, 1956 read with Companie.s (Disclosure ol I’ ai liculars in Ihe Report of Ihe Board of 

Direclors) Roles. 1988 and (oiining a part ol lire Direclors’ Rqxrrt.
I. CONSEHVATION OF ENERGY
Disclosure ol i'*arliculars wilh res) reel to conservation ol energy

A. Power and I'uel Consumption
Electricity:
|a)

(5)

Rurcliaspd:
Units
Total
Raleyl )i ill
Own yei leiation:
(i)

B.

Thmnqh Diesel Generator 
Units
l.lnil fjer litre of Diesel oil 
CoslUnil 

(ii) Thiough Steam
Tnrlrine/Generntor 

Coal |S|redly tk Wliere Used):
(Jiianlily 
Total Cost
Average Rale Rs./I'onnc 
D iinace O i l : 
tTnanlily 
Total Cost 
Average Rate
Oltiendlnlenial Generation : 
Consunipllon per unif of lYoduction

35.86
I I.

Stijrerphosphale 
Sulptiiiric Acit!
Graniilaled Teriiliser 
Sodium Silico I Itioride 

rOHCIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUIGO 
Earnings 
Oulrp
Infonnatirrn as [)er Set lion 217(2A) of Ihe Com|)anies Ad. 19.56 read with the Companies (("articulars of Em|)loyees) Rules. 1975

‘OOOKWH 
Rs./lars 

RS./KWI f

■OOOKWII 
(KXIKWII 
Rs. jKWI I

'(XXIKWII

Tonnes
Rs./Lacs

Rs-/ronne

Kl. 
fls./ljics 

RS./KL 
'(KK)KWt I 
Elediicity 

(KWl I'MT) 
2 8 .8 2

1 2 .8 0
3 5 .6 4

Rs.ilzics
Rs./Lacs

Tills Year

1 6 9 5 5 0 4
1 3 9 .1 8

8.21

Previous Year

2012888
136.71

6.79

1 6 3 .6 1 0
1 7 .3 0

10574

puniace Oil 
(Lm S/M D

Electricity
(KWHMl)

26.74

Purnace Oil
(L'IKS/Mr)

0 .3 3 7

Nil
2 9 1 0 .9 6

Nil
3226.54

N cMHG Acf- DesignalioiV 
Nature of Duly

l?emiineration
IRs-)

Qualification 
&  Expciience

Date o fC o m jn e n - 
re m e n l of 
Fniployjiienf

Previous Pmploy- % 
riient lieUlwilli

of Equity 
lield

Shri Suresh Kumar lia iu jur 6() fixeculive Direclor 
(lYoduclioti &  
DeveloiJment)

18.23.801/- B.Com 4 0 yrs. IS lh O c l, 1982 M's. f?aj Luxrni Asscxiates 4.33

NOTES :
1. Remuneration includes Salary, I louse rent Allowance. Conlrilruliou to Provident fund. Super,innuation Annuity (xrlicy. l.eave Travel Assistance. 

Glut) Memtrership fee. Reimbursement of medical extienses and otfier ixtrquisites evaluated on Ihe lta,sis of Income Tax Ad, 1961 &  Rules framed 
tliereunder.

2. Gratuity has tiot Ireeii induded in remuneration
3. Nature of Ernjitoyinent: Non Contactuai,
4. Tenns &  Conililioiis - As ]X?r Company's Rules.

0/1 behalf of the Board of Direclors of 
The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Kolkata Suresh Kumar Baiiyur Biiiod Khai/u/t
Dated: May 28, 2013 Executive Director Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Industry Structure and Development ;
India is primaiily an ayrarian economy willi ayiicullure as llie backbone of economy. Resullant, Indian ferlilizer industry 
has fabulous scope for jirouiding ayri-inpul. 15urdencd wilh a mission of feeding ils increasing populalioii India needs to 
be self reliant in food grains and Irusl will luive lo be placed on fertilizers.
Single Super I’liospliale (SSP) Ferlilizer industry is llie ground-breaking fertilizer induslry in the counliy. SSP fertilizer 
contains Sulphur and Calcium besides l'lius|iliorus so it is an ideal manure lo abolish sulphur deficiency in soil resulting 
into increase in yield of potato, rice tobacco, oilseeds etc. lo a great extent.
We Iherefore expecl SSP lo liave a good future in the years lo come.
Production & Performance :
During Ihe year under leview, your company achieved production of 51,528 MT of Powdered Single Sujier Pliosphale. 
4842 MT of Granulaled Single Super Phospliale (GSI’) as against iirodudion of 7 1 G 9 4  MT of Powdered Single Super 
Phosphale and Nil M l’ <>l GSP in llie previous year.
Tiie Company repotled an operating iiroiit (FBri'DA) of Rs. 259 lacs in current year against an operating profit of 
Rs. 588 lacs in previous year. After pioviding for Ihnance Cost, Deprecialioii. Tax Adjuslmenls and Share Issue 
Fxpenses, Ihe Company leporled a net loss of Rs. 163 Iocs against profit of Rs, 161) lacs.
Ititeriial Control Systems and tlieir adequacy ;
Tlie Comiiany has propei and adeipiate system of inlenial controls commensurate witii ils size and scale of operation to 
protect all ils assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition ami all liansaclions are authorized, recorded and 
reported In coiilormily wilh generally accepted accounting principles. Inleinal Conlrols are also reviewed by the Internal 
Auditor.
Human Resources :
i lunian Ca))ilal foniis liie critical pari of an enterprises privileged assets. Tlie Company continued ils commilnient to 
acijuire, develop and enhance ils human polenliai. With a dedicated strategy of empowering )>eople at all levels and 
encouraging lo lake decisions supplemented wilh [lee (low of information and ideas, lias lielped in strengthening its 
liunian capital ba.se of Ihe Company.
Opportunities ;
'I'he Coni)iany's nianufncluiiny unit situated at Rishra in tlic I iooyhly disliict of West Bengal wiiicli put it in a good 
stead lo speedily seivk;e demand. The Company's integrated Granuialed Sujier Phosphate Plant to manufacture 
Granulaled Super Pliosiiluile in conformity wilh Government line of action. lYoximily lo sea port /markets coupled 
willi a dedicaled iiiulli-disciplinary work force lias all along enairled the company lo respond lo siiurls In demand. The 
Company's "17\K,S1 IMl" inand of produce i.s well acceiiled in Hie market a.s premium quality product wliidi ha.s also 
crealed a beiiclimaik in lerms of reliabilily and oulpul.
Tlireats :
.Since Hie company's liusiness is clepemlenl upon jrolicy ot Ihe GovemmenI and good monsoon, any diange (herein may 
likely lo affed the |ir<)jeclions and irlaris of Ihe comiiany. Any adverse movement in Rupee/Dollar paiily can also effect 
Company's operation.
Future Outlook ;
For an induslry linked wiHi food grain production lo meet llie vequiienienl of ever growing population. Hie future outlook 
seems positive. Desjiile India being Hiivd largest jiroducer of fertilizer in Hie worlii. is also second largest importer and 
Iherefore there is a scope of increasing pioduclion of (etiilizer lo cater (he demand of (armers and restrict import to 
conserve precious [oreiyn exdiarige.
Governnieiit of India has fuitlier leduceri subsidy for Hie year 2(113-14. I lowever, (his lime price of raw materials is 
soflening. lairlher, this year impoit of I’hosphatic (erliliser is only marginal. Moieover. there is a forecast of Good 
Monsoon, All lhe.se fadois must be conveiled in robust demand and should auger well for llie Company.
Cautionary Statement :
Slalcment in Hiis nianagement discussion and analysis describing Hie Conipaiiy's olijecHves, projection, estimates and 
exiiectations may be 'foiward looking slatemenis' within Hie meaning of ajiplicabie laws and regulations. Actual results 
may differ (rom Hiose expressed or ini|ilied as many factors- like, availaliilily of raw mateiials, dtanges in political and 
economic environment in India, apiilicatile Slalules, Laliour Relations and Interest Crisis etc., may affect Hie company's 
operations.



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Company's Philosophy
The Company's Philoso[)hy on governnnce i= founded upon and siruduied on a rieli legacy of ethical and transparent 
business conduci al buikling IrusI ainongsl diveise stakeholders on fairness, Iransparency and ethical behavior.

Board of Directors
The Contpany's Board of Directors comprises of an opiimal complement of independent profes.sionals experienced 
\)iomoters as-well-as Crrrniirmy Executives having in-de)ilh knowledge ot the business and the industi-y. Il represents a 
mix ot professionalism, experience and knowledge. Ihe size and composition of the 15oard conform lo the requirements 
of lire Corporate Governance Code urrder the Listing Agreement wilh the Stock Exchange,

i) Composition & Category
'l ire Bonn! of Diiei:lors ot your Corrrpany as on 31sl March, 2013 corrsisled of six directors as under :

B)

NAME OF DIRECTORS CATEGORY
Sliri Biiiod Kumar Khailan 

Shri 1 lemaul Bangur

Shri Suresh Ktiriiar Bangur (w.e.f. 13-8-12) 

Shri Dilip Pratapsingh Goculdas 

Shri Pranal) Kumar Bhanjachaudhuiy 

Shri Murali Dhar Damani

Ihomoler/Non Execulive Director 

Promoler/Non Execulive Director 

Promoler/ E.xeculive Director 

Independent/ Non Execulive Direclor 

independent / Non Execulive Direclor 

Non lYomoler/Execulive Direclor

None of Ihe Direclors on lire Board holds lire office of director in riroie than 1.5 coiti|)anies or memberships in 
coriiniillees ol Hie Board in inoie tlian 10 coinniillees or Cliaitntanship ol more than 5 conimiltees.

Board Proceedings
In lenns of Ihe Company’s Coiiiorale Governance Policy, all staUilory and oilier signilicant material information 
are placed before lire Board lo eiiahle il lo tlischarge its lesponsiliililies of strategic supervision ol the Company as 
tinslees of Ihe .Shareholders.

iii) Attendance at tlie Board Meetings/last AGM etc.
Six l5oard Meelirigs were held on Ihe [ollowiiig dales:

14.05.2012 22.06.2012 13.08.2012 05.11,2012 06.02.2012 21.03.2013

'l ire allendarice ol Ihe directors al Ihe Board Meetings held during the year is given in the cliail below which also 
shows delails of lire number of Diieclorsiii])s. Commitlee Chairniansliips/ nieriibciships held by them in other 
conipanies exckiding (irivate liniiled coinpanies, foreign companies, membership of managing coinmiltees of 
various chambers/bodies and allernale direclorsltiirs during Ihe Financial Year under review.

Name of 
tlie Director

No of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Attendance at 
last AGM lield 

on 13.8.12

Directorsliip/Committee 
Cliairinan/Membersliip 

in other Companies

Shri Binod Khailan 6 Yes 1 Comirany & 2 commitlees
Shri Hemant Bmiyui 6 Yes 8 Companies & 3 committees

Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur 
(w.e.l. 13.08.2012)

4 Yes Nil

Shri Dilip l’rnla|)singh Goculdas 3 Yes Nil

Shri lYanab Ktiiiiar Bhnnjachowrihuiy 5 Yes Nil

Shri Murali Dliar Damani 5 Yes Nil



Board Coininitlees

There are three coinniillees of the Board viz.. Audit Cominillee. Beniuneralion Committee and Share Transfer and 
Shareholders/ Investors Grievance Conimillee .

Mailers re(|uiring Ihe Board's atlenlion/approual will he placed before Ihe Board along wilh Minutes of the respective 
Commillees. 'The 'Terms ol Beierence role and composition o( these Commillees are provided below:

Audit Committee 
Composition
Audil Cornniillee was formed on 21s( March. 2013. consisling of three Directors namely Shri I’ranab Kumar 
Blianjadiaudtniry. Non Execulive independent Direclor as Chairman, .Sliri Dilip Bralapsingh (Strculdas - Non Execulive 
Independent Direclor as Member and Slid .Suresli Kumar Bangur-Execulive Ifromoter Direclor as Member wilh 
Sliri M. D. Damani as .Secretary of Ihe Conimillee.

No meeting of Ihe Conimillee was lield duiiiig tlie financial year under review and as sucli no fee was payable.

Broad Terms of Reference :
Auilil Conimillee will assist ilie Board in discliargiiig its responsibilities regarding coiinrliance witli legal and regulatory 
requirenienis. Hie qualily and iiileyrily of tlie accounliny, audiliiig, reporling practices S l financial disclosures of the 
Com|)any. I'lie lenns ol reference ol Ihe audil coiiiiiiillee are in accordance wilh paragraptis (C and D) ol Clause 49(11) 
of Ihe Listing AgieemenI and as specified by Hie l3oaid oi Direclors of Hie Coni|)any and inler-alia include:

•  Keviewiiig (he company's financial reporling jirocess and disclosure of financial inforniation;

•  ITecommendiiig Hie appoinliiieiil, re-appoinlment and removal ot slalutory auditors, (ixalion ol audit and other 
fees;

•  Reviewing tlie qiiaiierly and iimuial financial slateiiients willi primary locus on accouiiliiig policies and practices, 
compliance willi accouiiling slandaids and legal requirement concerning (iiiaiicial slalements;

•  Ifeviewing llie adeijuacy ol internal conlrol syslenis and internal audit function, ensuring compliance of internal
conlrol syslenis and reviewing llie Company's financial and risk management policies;

•  Reviewing Hie reports furnished by llie inlernal audilors and slalutory auditors and ensure .suitable follow-up
tliereoii;

•  Reviewing Ihe financial slalemenls.

Audil Commitlee wliile reviewing tlie Annual Iniiniicial Slalemenls also reviewed Hie apiilicabilily of various Accounting
Standards (AS) issued liy The Insliiule of Cliarlered Accounlaiils of India during the year. Compliance of the AS as 
applicalile (o Ihe Company iias been ensured in Hie Financial Slaieiiicnis for Hie year ended 31sl March, 2013.

Share Transfer & Shareliolders'/lnvestors Grievance Commiltee 
Composition ;
Sliare liansfer S l Sliarelioldeis’ Investois/ Grievance Commiltee consisling o( three members, Sliri Binod Khailan, Non 
Execulive I’romoler Director as Cliairman, Slid Suresli Kumar Bangur, Execulive Promoter Director and Shri M. D. 
Damani, Direclor was formed during (he financial year under review.

No meetiiiy of Hie Cominillee was held during tlie linaiicial year under review and as sucli no fee was payable.

Broad Terms of Reference :
'The lemis of reference of Hie Commillees are lo look into redressal of Shareliolders/Iiivcslors complainis relating lo non- 
receipl of nolices, share i erlilicale.s. annual reports, dividends, transfer of shares, demnlerializalion of shares and olher 
grievances and to oversee redressal ol sliareliolder and investor grievances and approval o( Iransler / transmission / sub­
division / remaleriali.salkin of shares, issue o( duplicate sliare cerliiicales etc.. Registrar & Sliare Transfer Agents M/s 
Maheshwari Dalaniaiocs IM. Ltd. (MDPL) will give periodical reports to Hie Commillee about all Hie above activities.
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ITirdier, all Iransfeis / liansniissioiis and olher work will be done under aulhenlicalion of Company officials as per 
advice /ap)rroval of M/s MD1"L.

Coinpliaiice Officer :
Mr. Murali Uliar Damani Company Secreiary is (lie Compliance Officer tor complying willi Hie requirements of SEBl 
Reyulalions and Hie l.isling Agreemenis wilh Hie Slock Exchanges in India.

The details of complaints received and allenderl lo during Hie year are given below:

a. No. o[ complainls received [rom stmreholdurs : Nil
b. No. of cnmiilairils resolved / redressed Nil
c. No. o[ complainls pending as on 31sl March. 2013 Nil

No investors grievances remained unalleiicled,pending tor more Ilian 30 days and no ie<|uesls for sliare transfers and 
denialerinlisaHqn received during Hie financial year were pending for more Hiaii Iwo weeks.

Reniuiieralloii Coiiiiiiilfee
Composillon :
Bcniuneralion Comniillee comiirised of lliree nicmiiers. Siiri Diliii Ihalapsinyli Goculdas, Non Executive Independent 
Director as Cliairman willi Sliii I lemani Bangur Non Execulive F’lomoler Diredor and Sliri I’lanab Kumar 
Bliaiijadiowdliiiry. Non lixeculive Independenl Director as member, was [oniied on 21st March 2013.

No meeling of Hie Comniillee was held during lire financial year under review and as sudi no fee was jiayable.

Broad Terms of reference

i. Reviewing (he oveiall ccmipensalioii policy, service agreements and oHier eniploynient condition of Whole time
Diredor(s).

ii. Reviewing Hie iieiloimance of Hie Whole lime Diiedor(s) and recommeiicliiiy lo Ihe Board Ihe quanlum of annual 
incremenis .

Remuneration Policy
i. Reiiiunevation to Non-Executive Diieclors

The Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of silling iee (rC Rs. 10,000 lor eacli meeting of Ihe 
Boaid and Rs. ,5,000 (or eacli meeling of Committee attended Hiereof by Hieiii.

ii. Heimineralion lo Wliole time Diredor(s)

Tlie apiioinlmeni of Wliole lime Diiedor(s) are governed by resolulioiis passed by Hie Board of Directors, 
Sliareliolders of Hie Coiii|iany and al.so llie re.sjiective Agreemenis executed belween Hiern and Hie Company 
wliidi cover Hie lerms of such aiipoinlmeni and payment of reniunerntion etc..

Remuneration to Directors
Non-Executive Directors (Rs.)

Name Sitting Fees
.Sliri Biiiod Kiiailaii 60,000

Sliri i lemani Bangur 60,000

SliriDilii> Rrataiisiiigli Gocuklas 30,000

Shri I’ranal) Kuriiar Blraiijadinudliuiy 50,000

Total 2.00,000



Executive Directors ;
Sliri S K Bangur 

13.08.12 to 31.03.13
Shri M.D.Damani 

01.04.12 to 31.03.13
Earnings Amount Amount

Salary 761290 583500
Benefils 4458,58 353445
Tolal 1207148 936945
Service Conlrad 3 years 2 years

Notes :
i. Service Coiitracis, Severance Fees and Notice Period ;

The appoinlnieni of Execulive Direclovs is ijovenied by resolutions adojiled liy tlic Hoard of Directors and the
sliareiiolders of Hie Company, wlHch covers Hie (enns and condilions of sucli appointmenl read with the service
rules of Hie Company. Separate Service Contracts liaue Ireen entered into hy the Comtiany witli Hie Executive 
Directors. There is no provision (or paymeni of severance fee under Hie resolulioiis governing the appointment of 
Wliole-lime Direclors. I'he resignation of Execulive Directors becomes effedive upon acceptance by Ihe Board.

ii. Employees Slock Option Sclieme :
'I'lie Company does nol have any Stock OpHon Scheme.

iii. Performance Linked Incentives ;
'i'he Company lias inleinal noiiiis for assessing Ihe perfonnance of ils senior executives including Whole-time
Direclors and any paymeni Hiereof ret)uire Hie approval of Hie Board.

CEO / CFO Certlflcalion
As required under Clause 49 of Hie I.isltng AgieeiiienI, a Ceitificale was placed before Hie Board in ils meetings held on 
28Hi May, 201,3 from Chief Eixecutive OKicer designated as Execulive Direclor as appended be treated as Certificate 
(rom CEO / CEO.

May 23, 2013

he Board of Direclors 
lie I’liosiiluile Co. l.ld.

Kolkata-700001

This is lo cerlify that -

a) I have reviewed financial staiemeiils and Hie casli flow statement for Hie year ended 31-03-2013 and (hat (o the 
best of my knowledge and belief:

i) Hiese slaleiiienis do nol contain any materially untrue slatemeni or omil any inalerial (act or contain 
statemenis Hiat miglil be misleading.

ii) hese slalemenis logeHter presenl n (rue and fair view of Hie company's affairs and are in compliance with 
exisling accounting slandards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) I’liere are, to Hie liest of my knowledge and lielief. no liansacHoii entered in lo by the company during the year 
whicli are frauclulc'iil, illegal or violale of the com[inny's code of conducl.

c) ] accept responsibility for establishing and niainlaiiiing internal conlrols (or finandal reporling and that I have 
evaluated Hie eifecliveiiess of inlenial conlrol systems of tlie company pertaining lo financial reporting and I have 
disclosed (o Hie audilors deficiencies in Hie design or operation of sucli inlernal conlrols. if any, of whicli I am 
aware and Hie slejis 1 have laken or (iiopose to lake to rectify Hiese deficiencies.



tl) ! have iiidicnled lo Ihe audUois

i) signifitnni changes in Ihe inlernal conlrol over (inancial reporting during Hie year,

Ii) siynificanl changes in Hie accounling poiicies during Ihe year and llial the same have been disclosed in Ihe
notes lo llie financial slalemenls; and

iii) inslances of significani fraud of whicli I have become aware and Hie involvement Hierein, if any, of
MianagemenI or an employee having a significant role in Ihe company's inlernal conlrol syslem over
financial leporling.

Suresli Kumar Hangur 
Execulive Direclor

Statutory Compliance Certification
Based on represerilalion liy Ihe concerned deparlmenis a cerlificale relating lo necessary slalutory compliances on 
quarlcrly basis, issued by Direclor & Secretary, is placed liefore ihe Board for its perusal.

General Body Meetings
'I'lie lasi lliree Annual Clenera! Meelings :

SI. Dale Time Venue Special
Resolutions

passed

1 l3Hi Augusi, 2012 11.30 a.m Somany Conference I lall of 
MCC Clianiiier of Commerce 8l liulusliy. 
15. 1 leniani Basu Sarani. KolUata-700001.

2

2 29HiSepl.,2011 11.30 a.m Somany Conlerence 1 lall oi 
MCC Chamber of Commerce & Indusiry, 
15, 1 lemaul Basu Sarani, Kolkala-700001. NIL

3 4lh Sept., 2010 11.30 a.m Somany Conlerence 1 lall ol 
MCC Cliamlier ot Comiiierce & Induslty, 
15, Heiiiaiil Basu Sarani, Kolkala-700001. NIL

Meeting by Postal Ballot
A Special Resolulion as proposed in Hie lYislal ti 
Company Secretary was appoinled as scrulinizer for 
on 26lli February. 201,'! as follows:

:illol Nolice dated 28-01-201,'! , Ms Manila Binani a I’racticing 
conducling Hie Roslal Ballot process. Slie re|iorled Hie vole count

Particulars No. of Postal No. of % of voting
Tolal poslal liallol forms received 54 997604 —

Less : Invalid ]ioslal liallol forms 
(as ]ier regisler)

3 39378 3.95

Nel valid poslal liallol kiinis 
(as )ier register)

51 958226 —

l-’oslal Ballol Ikirnis wilh asseiil 50 9.58126 96.04

Roslal ballol k.mis wilh disseni 1 100 0,01

I’oslal l5ailol forms nol voled — — —
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After receiving Ihe scnilinizer's report, il was announced on 28th February 2013 Thai Ihe Special Resolulion as 
proposed in Ihe I'oslal Ballol Notice was duly passed with Ihe requisite majorily and lire Notice lliereof, had been pul on 
Notice Boairl al Hie Rcgislered Office ot Ihe Company and recorded in Hie Minute Book recording Ihe proceedings o f the 
sliareholdets meelings.

Disclosures
(a) Related parly transactions

Tlie Company lias not entered inlo traiisaclion(s) of nialeiially significant naliire wilh its Promoters or Direclors 
or Iheir relalives elc. Hial have poteiilial conflict wilh the interest o( Hie Company al large.

Transaclioiis willi Ihe related parlies have lieen disclo.sed in Note no, 30 of Hie Noles lo Ihe ['inancial Slalements.

(b) Compliances by lire Company
1 he Company has comtilied wilh Hie requirements of Hie Slock Exdiangcs, SEBI and oHier slalutory aulhorilies
on all mailers relaling to capital nuiikels dining Hie iasi three years. No |ienallies or siriclures have been imposed 
on Hie Company liy Slock Exclianges, SEBI or any slatulory auHiinilies on matters related (o capital markets, 
during Hie Iasi lliree years.

(c) Wblstle Blower Policy
Transparency fomis an integral pari of Hie Company's Corporate Philosophy and eni|iloyees are encouraged to 
be guardians o( Hie Code of Conduci and Ethics and to re|iorl any variance.

(d) Risk MlnimlzBllon Policy
Tlie Company has (ormulaled tisk miiiimizalion policy tor the guidance by the Board Members lo ensure that 
executive manageiiieni coiiliols risk llirougli means of a properly defined framework, Tlie same is being monitored 
from lime lo lime lo ensure llial all idenlilied risks are provided for adequately.

(e) Details ot use of Public funds obtained in tbe last tbree years :
The Company has raised funds llirougli preferential issue of equily sliares of Rs.10/- eacli at a premium of Rs.l4/- 
per equily shaie Fund has been ulilized as slated in Hie noHce of Poslal Ballol dated 18Hi January, 2013.

(f) Compliance witb Mandatory requirements and adoption of Non-mandatory requirements
All mandalory requirenienis of Hie Corporate Governance Code are being complied willi. Non-mandalory 
requirements, will lie reviewed liy Ihe Board periodically.

Particulars of appointment of Directors
This (orms pail oi Hie Notice convening llie Annual General Meeling.

Means of Communication
a. The quarterly, liaK-yearly and annual resulls of the Com|)any are published in prominenl dailies such as The 

Echo of India' in Englisli and ' Artliik i.ipi ' in Bengali. No separate communicalions are sent lo Hie Shareholders. 
The results are also posled on Hie Company's website lillp://pli<isiiliale.co.in sliorlly after these are submitted lo 
Hie Slock Exchanges.

b. No preseiilalions lo Hie Sliarelioldeis. Iiislilulional Investors or lo Analysis liave been made during the year under 
review

Code of Conduct
A Code of Condutl has lieen laid down by the Board. I'liis code is derived from Ihe fundamenlal principle on which The 
I’hosphale Company Limiled's coiporale pliiloso|iliy is based, namely, Irusleeshi]), accountaliilily and ethical corporate 
citizenship and is np|jlicable to all Direclors, senior management and employees of the Company. This has been 
accepted by all Direclors and Senior Execulives.
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Code of Conduct for I’revention of Insider Trading
Tiie Phospliale Company Limiled's has a Code of Conduct for Prevenlion of insider Trading in Ihe shares of tlie 
Company. The Code, iiilei alia, proliiiiits purchase/.sale of shares of Ihe Company by employees wliile in possession of 
unpublislied-price sensilivc informaiioii in relation lo Hie Company.

Stiareliolder Information
Annual (jenerni Meeling 
Date, Time Ik venue

Financial Calendar (lenlalive)

Idiiaiicial Resulls

1st quarter

2nd quarler

3rd quailer

4lh qnarler

Book Closure

Dividend

Lisling on Slock T.xcliaiiges 

l.isling Fee / Custody I'ees 

Slock Code

Monday, 12th AugusI, 2013 al 11:30 A.M. Somaiiy Conference 1 [all of MCC 
Clii'imliei of Commerce & Induslry. 1,5 I leiiiaiil Basu .Sarani, Kolkaln-70(XJ01

By IHlli AugusI. 2013 

By 1.5lh Noveniher, 2013 

By 1.5Hi ITtiiuary, 2014 

By 31sl May, 2014

Isl AugusI, 2013 lo 12Hi AugusI. 2013 (txilh days inclusive)

Tlie Board of Direclors liave nol recommended any dividend for Hie year ended 
31al Maicli, 2013

'1 he Company's e()uily sliares are lisleii on 'I’lie CalcuHa Slock Fxchangc Liniiled 
(CSF).

Annual Listing iee lo CSF lias been paid uplo llie year 2013-14 
Annual Cuslorly fees have heen paid lo NSDL and CDSL for 2013-14.

CalcuHa Slock Fxcluinge l.imiled (CSF) 10026031 (Pliysicnl) 
INF398C01016(Denial)

Tliere was no liansaclion of shares on C.SF during Ihe year, 

Dlslrlbution of Stinreliuldiiig as on 31st March, 2013
Sliareliolding Number of 

Holders
Percentage Number of 

Sliare.s
Percentage

Uplo .500 862 79.2279 154788 4.2908

501 lo 1000 95 8.7316 70140 1.9443

1001 lo 2000 48 4.4118 69370 1.9229

2001 lo 3000 10 0.9191 25900 0.7180

3001 lo 4000 10 0.9191 35940 0.9968

4001 lo 5000 2 0.1838 9756 0.2704

5001 lo 10000 16 1.4706 124370 3.4476

10001 and above 45 4.13t)0 3117216 86.4098

Grand lolal 1088 100 3607480 100



Number of 
Shares Held

A. Sharehoiding of Promoter & Promoter Group
a. Individuals / HUFs 
I). Bodies Corpoiale

B. Public Shareholding
n. Idnancial Inslilulions / Banks
b. Insuiancc Companies
c. Bodies Coiporale
d. Indian I'utilic
e. NKIs

924046
1176530

43(X)
333480
456670
711514

940

25.6147
32.6136

0.1192
9.2441

12.6590
19.7233

0.0261

Grand ’I'olal 3607480 100

ihare Transfer System :
be share Iransfers duly received wilh documenlalion being in order are. processed williin 15 days from tlie date of 

eceipl. Shares meani for Hie [lurpose of Iransfer/lransmission in physical fonn. should be lodged wilh the Company's 
legislrnv & Sliare Irnnsfer Agent at tlie address given above. Fxecutives of Ihe Comiiany are auHiorized lo approve the 
iliare Iransfer/lransmission of shares on Hie lecommendalioti of Maheshwari Dalanialics I’vt. Lid. , Registrar & Share 
Iransfer Agents, and Imnsferred shares are dispalclied lo llie transferee immedialely.

As required under Cianse 47(c) o( Hie l.isling Agreement(s) enlered into with the Slock Exchanges, a certificate is 
obtained every six monlhs from a Company Secreiary in Rraclice, inler-nlia, confirming coniplelion of Iransfer, 
Iransmission. sub-division, consolidalion, renewal ami exchange of equily sliares witliin one nionlli of llieir lodgment. 
The certificales are foiwaided to Hie Slock Fxcliaiiycs, where Hie equily shares are lisled, within 24 hours of issuance.

Dematerialization of Sliares ;
The Company's scrips (orm pari of Ihe SFBl's Compulsory Demal segment for all investors. The Company has established 
connectivily wiHi both Hie Depositories viz, Nalional Securilies Deixisitoiy Limiled (NSDl.) and Cenlral Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) througli the Registrar & Sliare 'i ransfer Agents - Maliesliwati Datamalics Pvt. Ltd.

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruinents. etc.
The Company has nol issued Ihese types of securilies.

Plant Location : 45, Ramakrishna Road, Rishra,
Ilooqiily (W. Bengal)-? 12248
Tel. 033-26721448/1497. Lax. 91-33-26722270
L.mail-|)clsuper(u vsnl.net

Address for Correspondence :
Hegislered Ofiice :

Registrar and Sliare Transfer Agents

14. Nelaji SulHias Rond, Koikala-700001
Tel. (),33-223()0771(3lines), (fax. 91-33-22436236
L.Mail-phospliate@vsnl.iiel

Maheshwari Datamalics Pvt Lid.
6. Mangoe Lane (Surendra Motian Ghosh Sarani),
2nd Floor. Kolkata -  700 001
Tel : (033) 2243 5809, 2248 2248, Fax ; (033) 2247 4787 
L-niail. mdpl@cal.vsiil.net.in.

mailto:mdpl@cal.vsiil.net.in


Compliance Officer & Shri M.D.Damani. Direclor & Secretary, is the Compliance Officer
Means of Communication : He is available at the Registered Office of the Company

al 14, Nelaji Subhas Road. Kolkala - 7001)01.
Tel : 03,3-22300771-3, ITax : 033-22436236 
Molj : 09681096817, Email : phosphalelr/'vsnl.net

Certificate on Compliance with (lie condilioiis of Corporate Governance under clause 49 of llie Listing 
Agreement.

To
1 he Memliers of 
The Phosphate Co. Lid.

We have examined Ihe compliance of coiidilions of Corporate Governance by The Phosphate Co. Eld., for the year 
ended 31sl Marcli 2013. as stipulated in Clause 49 of Ihe Listing Agreements of Ihe said Company with slock exchanges 
in India.

l lie compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibilily of Ihe Company's management. Our 
examination was carried out in accordance wilh Ihe Guidance Note on Cerlificalion of Corporate Governance (as 
stipulaled in Clause 49 of (lie Lisling AgieemenI), issued by the insliiule of Chartered Accountants of fndia and was 
limited to procedures and implementation lliereof, ado{ited by Ihe Company (or ensuring (he compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. II is neither an audil nor an expression of opinion on tlie financial statements of 
Ihe Company.

in our opinion and lo llie best ol our inlormalioti and according lo Ihe explanations given to us, we certify that Ihe 
Company lias com()lied with tlie conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing 
Agreements.

We slate llial such compliance is neither an assurance as lo the future viability of llie Comjiany nor the efficiency or 
elfecliveness wilh wliich Ihe managcmeni has conducted Ihe affairs of the Company.

For B A TL IBO I. PU B O IIIT  & U A R B A B I
Firm  Reg. No. 303Q86E 

Chartered Accountants 
IIEMAL MEHTA

Place ; Kolkala Partner
Date : 2 8 tli May, 2013 Membership No. : 063404



AUDITOFfS’ REPOFir 
TO THE M EM B E R S  O F THE PH O SPH ATE C O M PA N Y  LIM ITED
We have nuililed Ihe accoiiipanyiny I'inniuial Slalemenls of THE PI lOSPI lAl E COMPANY L.IMITF.D (“Ihe Company”) 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as al Mauli 31. 2013 and the Slalement of Profit and Lo.ss and Casli How Stalemenf 
for llie year Iheii ended, and a suniniary of significani accounling policies and olher expianalory information.
Managemenl is responsilile for tlie ])ieparation oi these iinancial slalemenls tlial give a hue and fair view of the financial 
posilion, financial performance and cash flows of llie Company in accordance wilh Ihe Accounling Standards referred 
lo in suli-sectiori (3C) of seclion 211 of llie Companies Acl. 1956 (“Ihe Act”), i tiis responsiliility includes llie design, 
iniplenienlation and mainlenance of inlernal control relevani to Ihe preparation and presenlalion of the financial
slalemenls llial give a hue and lair view and are free from material iiiisslalemenl, whether due lo fraud or error.
Our responsibilily is lo express an opinion on lliese financial slalemenls based on our audil. We conducled our audit in 
accordance wilh Hie Standards on Audiliiig issued by Ihe Insliiule of Cliarlered Accoimlants of India. Tliose Standards 
require Hint we conqily wilh elliical requiremeiils and jilan and perform Ihe audil to oiilain reasonable assurance about 
whether Hie financial slalemenls aie free from maleiial iiiisstatemenl.
An audil involves perioniiainy piocedures lo oblaiii audil evidence about Hie ariiouiils and disclosures in llie financial 
slalemenls. I lie piocedures selected deiieiiil on Hie audilor's judgmeiil. including llu' assessnieni oi Hie risks of malerial 
iiiissslalenienl of Hie financial slalemenls, wliellicr due lo fraud or eiror. In making lliose risk assessmenls, the auditor 
considers inlernal coiilinl relevani lo Hie Company's preparation and fair presenlalion oi Hie financial slalements in 
order lo design audil [irocedures Hial are appropriate in Ihe circunislaiices. An audil also includes evaluating the 
approprialeness of accounting policies used and Hie leasonableness of Hie accounliny esiimales made by managemenl, 
as well as evalualiny Hie overall inesenlalion of Ihe financial slatemenls.
We believe Hial Ihe audil evidence we have olilained is suificienl and appropriate lo |irovirle a liasis for our audit
opinion.
In our opinion and lo Ihe best of our infoniialion and according to Hie explaiialioiis given to us. Ihe linandal slalements 
give Ihe infonnalion rei|uirerl liy llie Acl in Hie manner so re()uired and give a Hue and fair view in conformily wilh Ihe 
accounling principles generally accepted in India;

a. ill Ihe case ol Ihe Balance Sheet oi the Slate of Affairs of Ihe Company as al 31st March, 2013.
11. ill Ihe case ol Hie lYoiil and l.oss Account oi Hie loss for Hie year entled on llial dale and,
c. in Hie case of Cash How SlalemenI oi Hie cash flows for the year ended on Hial date.

1. As reijuired by Hie Conipanies (Audilor's Kepoil) Order, 2003. (“Ihe Ordei") issued by Hie Cenlral Governmenl 
of India in lenns of sulvseclion (4A) of seclion 227 of Hie Acl, we give in Hie Annexure a slalement on the mailers 
specified in pnragraplis 4 and 5 ol Hie Order.

2. As required liy seclion 227(3) of Hie Acl, we reporl that :
a. We liave olilained all Ihe iniomialion and explanations, which lo llie best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for Ihe puiposes of our audil;
b. In our opinion, inoper liooks of accuuni as ie(|uirerl by law have been kept by Ihe Company, so [ar as appears 

from our examiiialioii of Ihose books;
c. The Balance Sheet, Ihe Slalement Prolil and Loss, and Cash How Slatement dealt wilh by Ibis report are in

agreemeni with Ihe books ol accounl;
d. Ill our opinion, Ihe Balance Sheet, Hie SlalemenI ol I’rofit and Loss and Ihe Cash How Slalement comply with Ihe 

Accounliny Standards releried to in sub-sedion (3C) of section 211 of the Coiii)iniiies Acl, 1956.
e. On Hie basis of Hie wrillen lepresenlalions received from Hie Direclors as on Marcli 31, 2013, and taken on 

record by Hie Bo<ird of Direclors. none of Hie directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being 
appoinled as a rliiedor in tenns of i lause (y) of sub-section (1) of seclion 274 of Hie Companies Acl. 1956.

For BATLIBO I, PU RO H IT  & D A R B A R I
Firm Reg. No. 303086E  

Chartered Accounlunls 
H EM A L  M EHTA

Kolkala Partner
Dated : 28th May. 2013 M embership No. : 063404



Th{? Aniiexurp refprrpt! lo in ])nrn<irnph 1 of Our Re|>orf c)f pvpii dnlp lo Ihe nipnibers of 1 f-JII I ’ l lOSI’ f lATIi COMI’ANY LIMITED on the accounts of 
Ihe Conipajiy for year pik Ip(1 31st March. 2013,
On tlip basis of such checks as we ronsidcred approprinle and arcurdiny lo fhe infonnation and explatialion yiven lo us duriny the course of our 
audit, we ve\K>rt that •.
1. a. The Company has mainlainefl pro|jer records showiny full |'>arlicular5 including quanlilalivc tlelails and .situalion of ils fixed assets.

b. As explained to us. lixed assets liave been pbysicaliy verified by the nianayenieiil at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies 
were noliced on .such veriliralion.

c. In our opinion aiid according lo Ihe infonnation and explanations given lo us. no fixed asset has Ireen dis^wsed during the year and 
therefore rioes lu it affect the going concern assumption.

2. a. As ex|.)laine(i lo us. inventories have been physically verified during Ifie year by the management at reasonable intervals.
b. In our o}iinion and according to the inlom iation and exjilanaUons given lo us, the procedures of physical verification of inventories

followed by Hip mnnngement are reasonable and adequate in relation to ifie size of the Company and tfie nature of its business.
c. In our o])inion and on tlie basis of our examination of the records, the C onq iaiiy is generally maintain ing proper records of its

Invenlorips. Nci maleiiai discrejiancy was noticed on |)hysicn) verilicalion of slocks liy  Ihe inanageiiienl as romparcfl to book records.
3. a. The Com |ia iiv lias laken inler-c(»r)X)rale loan unsecured (rom a parly coveted in the regislcr tiiainlained under Section 301 of the

Com)>anies Acl. 1950 The tnaximuin amount involved d iirittg Ihe year was Rs. 7,09.00,000/- atul the year-end balance of inter 
ro rix jia lp  loan liotn such jiarlies was Rs. r).30.fK).(KX)/-. 'I'he Cortijiany has not granted any loan lo any brxly crrvered in tfie register 
mainlaineii under Section 301 of the Cotmrauips Act. 1950. 

b. In our opinion, (he rate o l ititcrest and other temis and conditions on which inter roqiorale loans has Irecn taken from a C on ij^ny , is
not jniina fack, inplutllriai to Ihe interest of the Company. 

r. The Coni|)any is regular in re|)ayhig the piinci))nl atnounl as stipulated and lias been regular iti Ifie iiayinent of Interest.
4. In our opin ion and according lo  Ibe inform ation and explanalions giveti lo  us Diere is getieraily nderjuale internal C onlrol procedures 

commensurate w itli the size of Ihe Coiiqiany and the nature of its business for the jxirchases of jnventorics and fixed assets and payment for 
ex|>enses and for sale of goods. During the course of our audit, no major instance of continuing failure to correct any weaknesses in the 
inleinal controls has Ih p̂ii noliced.

5. a. Based on our audit procediires a i'p lie il K ' us and according to the infonnation and explanations provided by (he management, the
particulars o( contracts or arranyenients refervexl to in section 301 of the Act have been entered in the register required to be 
mainlained uiider that section.

b. As per inform ahon and explanations given lo us and in our opinion, the Iransactiori enlered in to  by the company w ith  parlies
covpied u/s 301 of the Act does exceed five lacs nijrees in a financial year and were lotind lo Ire icasmiable.

6. The Company has not accpjited any dejxisils horn the public covered under section 58A and +58AA of Ihe Com{ianies Act. 1956.
7. As i>er infonnation and explanalions given by the management, the Comimny has an internal autlit .system conimensurale w ilh the size and 

nalute of its busiue.ss.
8. As }>er infonnaliou nu<l explanation given liy  Ihe management, maintenance o( cost recorrls has been tuescribed by the Central Government 

under clause fd) of sub-section ( !)  of .section 209 of the Act and we are of the opinion lhal iJiima facie the pre.scribed accounts and records 
iiave fieen made anti inaintamed.

9. a. According lo Ihe records of the Comjiany. undisixited statutory dues including Piovirlent Funrl. Investor Education and Protection
Tuiid. Employees Stale Insurance. Income Tax. Sales Tax. Wealth Tax. Service Tax. Custom Duty. ILxcise Duly cess to the extent 
applicalile and any other stnlulory dues have generally been regularly de|K)sited with the appropriate authorities. According lo the 
inform ntkai’and explanations given lo us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31sl of March 2013 for a jieriod of more 
than siex monlhs (rom llie date they liecame jiayable.

b. According lo Ihe infonnation and explanations given lo us. there is no amounts payable in re.sjiect of iricome tax. wealth lax, service
lax. sales tax. customs rluty and excise rluty which have not been <lejx>sited on account ol any disi-iutc.

10. The Com pany has accumulated loss and has incurred rash loss during Ihe financial year coveretl by our au ilit but not im m ediately 
pieceding linancial year.

11. Baser) on our audil procedures and on the infonnation and ex|))analion.s given by tfie management we are of the opinion lhat llic  Company 
has nol defaulted in tejiayment of dues to lo a linancial institution, bank or defjenture fiolders.

12. According to Ihe inlomiation and explanations given lo us the Company has nol granted loans and advances on Ihe ba.sis of security by way 
of plerlge of sliares, (iet>enlures anr| other securities.

13. T lie Couqiany is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual lienefit fund / srx.iety. Therefore, tlic  jxovision of lliis clause of the Com j^nies (Auditor’s 
Rejxirt) Order. 21K)3 (a.s amended) is nol applicable to the Company.

14. According to the in lorm ation and explanations given to us. the Com iiany does nol deal or trade in Shares. Mutual funds and other 
invesfrnents.

15. According lo the information nrui explanations given to us tlie Comjiany fias not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or 
financial instilullons.

16. In our opinion, the tenii loans have been a))|7lied (or tfie ixiqxisc for which tfiey were rai.sed.
17. We have liecn iiifonued by tlie manageuieut that Ihe funds raiser! on short-term basis have not been user! for long-term investments and vice-

versa.
18. Based on the audit prtx ediires ])prtonne(l and the infonnation and exjilanations given to us by the management, we report lhat the company 

has made preferential allotment of shares during the year.
19. ’H ip Coiigjauy has no fMilslandIng delienlures rluring llie  jierkxl under audit.
20. The Coni|)aiiy ha.s not raised any money by jxiblic is.sue riuriiiq the year.
21. Based on Ihe amlil prix edures jierfonnetl and Infonnation and explanations cjiven to us. we reixirl that no fraud on or l>y Ihe Qwnijany has 

been noticed or re|K>rted during the year, nor have we been infonned of sucli cose by tlie management.

For B A TLIBO I, PUROHIT & DARBARI
r i r m  Reg. No. 303086E  

Chartered Accountants 
i lE M A L  MEHTA

l^lace ; Kolkata Partner
Dale ; 28 lh  May. 2013____________________________________________ ______  Membership No. : 063404



BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MAHCH, 2013
Scliedule

EQUITY & LIABILITIES 
SHAREHOLDERS FUND

Share Capilal 2

Reserves & Sunilus 3

Non-current liabilities

I.ong-Terni Liabiiilies 4

Long Term Rrovisions 5

Current Liabiiilies

Short Temi Borrowings 6

Trade Payables 

Olher CurrenI Liabiiilies

ASSETS
I'ixed Assels

Tangible Assels 

Capilal Wotk-in-Progress 

Non-Currenl Inveslmenls 

Deferied Tax Assels (Liabiiilies)

Long Term Loans and Advances 

CurrenI Assets 

Inventories 

Trade Receivables 

Cash and Cash Lc|uivalenls 

Short 'I'erm L.oans and Advances

7

Tolal

9

10 

11

12

13

14

15 

Tolal

3,60,74,800
4,82,57,730

9,89,86,758
27,28,599

24,70,86,493
15,09,18,687

70,79,641
59,11,32,708

15,62,85,743 

26,000 
61,14,531 
48,02,134 

9,12,51,583 
27,93,51,724 

3,79,57,437 
1,53,43,556 

59,11,32,708

1,73,24,800

3,88,27,147

13,26,06,642

20.96,581

22,94.42,169

5,84,24,357

64,75,249

48.51,96.945

11,28,48,329

2,88,41,679

26,000

(21.94,783)

67,05,741

5.32,71,009

25,57,.54,692

1,79,11,255

1.20,33,023

48,51,96,945
Significant Accounting Policies
Noles referred lo above (orm an inlegral pari of Ihe Balance Sheet. 
This is Ihe Balance Slieel referred to in our Reporl of even date.

roi BATLIBOI, I’U H O lll I & DAHBAHI
Firm  Heg. No. 3030861/
Choiiereit Arnvjntiints 
HEMAI. MEHTA 
Partner
M e inhersh ipN o. : OCkI 'K M

M. D. D A M A N I
DiiGf tor &  SeciPtaiv



Earnings per Eiiuily Shaie of Rs. 10 -
Basic and Uiluled 23

Significani Accounling Policies 1

Noles referred lo above lomi an inlegral jrarl of tlie Ibofil Sl Loss Accounl. 
Tliis is Hie Profil Sl Loss Accounl referred lo in our Report of even dale.

(9.11)

Note No. Year ended Year ended
31st Marcli, 2013 31sl March, 2012

INCOME
Revenue (rom Operations
Sales of Products and Subsidy Ihereon 62,23,30,939 75,28,96,769
Less : Excise Duly 37,06.402 32.78.556

61,86,24,537 74,96,18,213
Olher Income 16 11,01,518 5,53,534

Tolal 61,97,26,055 75,01.71,747

EXPENSES
(Incrense)/Decrease of Finished Goods 17 (2,88,04,985) 3,40,25,073
Cost of Materials Consumed 18 48,48,88,458 53.31,36,740
Goods Purchase for Triidiiig 24,30,307 —

Employees Betielils Expense 19 1,60,63,017 1,31,79,038
Manufncluring S l  Otiier Fxpenses 20 11,92,57,956 11,10,65.1.56

Tolal 59,38,34,753 69,14,06,007

Profil before Interesl,
Deprecinllon & Tax (EBIDTA) 2,58,91,302 5.87,65,740
Finance CosI 21 4,42,04,869 3,68,42,618
Depreciation 62,54,278 52,03,134
Less ; Transfer from Revalualion Reserve 5,60.768 56,93,510 .5,60,768 46,42,366

Profit before extraordinary items (2,40,07,077) 1,72,80,756
F.xlraordinary ilems — —

Share Issue Expenses 2,93,913 —

Rrofil before Tax (2,43,00,990) 1,72,80,756
Tax Expense ;
Current Tax 22 — —

Earlier year Tax Provision 2,66.97;! —

Deferred Tax (83,09,314) 12,88,670

Profit for tbe year (1,62,58,649) 1,59,92,086

9.23

Por BATLIBOI, HUHOIIH & UARBABI
Firm Reg. No. 303086H 
Cbdiiereci Armunlants 
IIEMAL MEHTA
Pnllner
Membership No. : 063404



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013
(PURSUANT TO ClAUSU 32 OF IT IE LIST INC. AGREEMENT )

3 1 s t  Marcli, 2 0 1 3

C asli Flow from Operating A ctivities
N et Profit before Tax and Extraordinary Item s :
Adjuslmeiils l(X:

Deijreciation 
Fixed A'isels 
Interest / Uiuidetxl 

O perating Prolit before  
Working Capilal Changes 

Adjuslnienis lo r :
T'rnde and other ReceivaNes
Inuenlories
Trade PayaWe

C ash generated from Operations

Interesl iwid 
Oirect Tax (raid 
Deferred Revenue

C ash Flow before extra ordinary Items 

N el casli How from operating activities

Cash Flow from invesling acliv illes
lAm liase ol ITxed Assels 
Sales of (ixed assets 
Interest Raxriverl

N et Cash used in Investing Activities

Cash Flow from financing activities
Prtx:ccds Irtxn issue 
of Share Capilal 

Proceeds Irtxn kxiy lenn / 
short lenn Uonoiving 

N et Cash used In 
financing activities 

N el increase
in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1-4-12
(Opening balance)

C ash and cash equivalents as at 31-3-13  
(Closing balance)

5 6 ,9 3 ,5 1 0
(9 3 ,1 1 1 )

3 ,9 5 ,6 5 .4 1 0

(2 ,6 3 ,3 3 ,3 9 3 )
(3 ,7 9 ,8 0 ,5 7 4 )

9 ,3 0 ,9 8 ,7 2 2

(4 ,1 7 ,7 9 ,7 1 0 )
1 0 .6 2 ,4 6 2
(2 ,9 3 ,9 1 3 )

(2 ,1 0 ,1 4 .1 0 2 )
2 ,5 7 ,2 0 0

2 2 ,1 4 ,3 0 0

4 ,5 0 ,0 0 ,0 0 0

(1 ,5 3 ,4 3 ,5 4 2 )

(2 ,4 0 ,0 7 ,0 7 7 )

4 ,5 1 ,6 5 ,8 0 9

2 ,1 1 ,5 8 ,7 3 2

2 ,8 7 ,8 4 ,7 5 5

4 ,9 9 ,4 3 ,4 8 7

(4,10,11,161)
8 9 .3 2 .3 2 6

8 9 .3 2 .3 2 6

(1 ,8 5 ,4 2 ,6 0 2 )

2 ,9 6 .5 6 ,4 5 8

2 ,0 0 ,4 6 ,1 8 2

1 ,7 9 ,1 1 ,2 5 5

46,42,366 
(1,99,742) 

3,52,77,.'■>65

(14,79.20,'XX))
3.43.91,677)
(2,80.33,7.52)

(3,61,48,(18.51 
(1..54,011)

(3,47,02.351)
62.24.0R5
8,70.530

15.20,60.801

1,72,80.756

3,97,20,179

5,70,00,935

(14.15.62.975)

(8,45,62,040)

(3.63,02.0%)

(12.08.64.136)

(12.08,64.1.36)

(2.76,07.736)

3 .7 9 ,5 7 ,4 3 7

Tltis is Ihe Casl) ITrrvv .Slatciiient referred In in our Re(x))1 of even dale

15.20,60.801

35.88,929

1,43.22„326

1,79,11,2,55

For BATLIBOI. PUROHIT & DARBARI
Hrni Reg. (Vo 30.T0S6F 
Chartered AcratiiilnnLs 
HEMAL MEHTA 
Paltrier
Memhership No. : 063404



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
1. Sign ifican t A ccounting P o lic ie s  :

i. B a sis  of A ccaiin ting :
The Financinl .Slnlemenls are jrrepared as per historical cosi convention and in accordance wilh the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles in India. Ihe Provisions of Ihe Conrpanies Act, 1956 and  the applicable 
accounting slandards referred lo in Seclion 211 (3C) of the Com panies Act, 1956. Accounting policies have 
been followed consistently.
Fixed A sse ts  & D epreciation  :
Depreciation on Fixed Assets have been charged to Accounts on Written Down Value Method except on Plant 
& Machinery installed during Ihe financial year 1980-81 onwards on Straighl Line Method in accordance with 
Ihe rate specified in Schedule XIV (as amended) of Ihe Com panies Ad, 1956.
Investm ents :
fnvestmenls are staled al Cost unless there is a pennaneni diminulion in Value.
Inventories valuation  :
Haw materials. Stores & Spare Parts and Packing Materials at Cost; Finished Goods at Cost or net realisable 
value whichever is lower.
S a le s  :
Sales at iirvoice value (including Lxcise, VA1 Freight on fertiliser) & Sutrsidy.
R etirem ent B enefit ;
a) The Com pany conirihules lo L.P L.O and approved Gratuity Tund.
b) Leave LiicashmenI tieiiefil accrued on retirement / superannuation of employees is provided on actuarial 

basis.
Foreign Currency transaction  :
Transaclions in foreign exchange are accounled al Ihe exchange rales prevailing on Ihe dale of (he transactions. 
The expenses / gains on account of exchatrge difference on paymeni is recognised in the I’rofil & Loss Account.

31st March, 2013 31st March. 2012

2a.

b.

SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
1,00,(X),000 Lquily Sliares of Hs. 10/- each 
(Previous year 50,00.()(X) Equily Shares of Hs. 10/- each)

10,00.00,000 5,00,00,000

ISSUED. SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP :
3607480 Equily Shares of Ils. 10/- each 
(of the above 9,84,360 Lriuiiy Shares allolled as 
fully paid-up by way of Bonus Shares by 
capitalisalion of Share Premium & General 
Reser ve and 1875fXH) shares allolled oir 
prelereirtial allotment against cash)

3,60,74,800 1,73,24,800

TOTAL 3 ,60,74,800 1,73,24,800

The details o( (he shareholders Iroldiirg 
more than 5 %  shares

Name ol tire SIrarelrolder No. % No. %
Carwin Trading Pvt. Ltd. 210000 5.82 Nil
Devi Prasad Tapai in 200000 5.54 Nd
Life Insurance Corpoiation of India 189240 5.25 189240 10.92%
.Joonklolle Tea & liiduslries Ltd. 138680 4.16 138680 8.00



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

c. Reconcllialioii of (he number of shares 
outstanding at the end of (be year
Equily shares al Ihe beginniny of Ihe year
Add : Shares Issued
Less : Shares Buy Back
Equity siiares al lire end of liie year

3. RESERVES & SURPLUS
a. Reserve on Revaluation of Fixed Assels 

As per Iasi Balance Slieel
Less : T'ransleired lo Profil & l.oss A/c.

Sub-lolal

b. General Reserve
As per last Balance Slieel

Sub-lolal

c. Securily Ihcmiuin 
Received during llie year

Sub-lolal

d. Profil & l.oss Accounl 
As per Insl Balance .Slieel 
Add : I’rolil (loss) lor (lie year

Sub-Tolal

■Jolal
4. Long Term Liabiiilies :

Secured Loans :
a. Coiporale 'I'enn l .oan from a Bank
b. Vehicle l.oans Iroiii Banks

a) .Secured by equitable niorlqage of iniuiovable 
property and exclusive first cliarye on fixed 
assels & paii (lassu second cliarye on CurrenI 
Assets

b) Secured liy liisl cliarye by way ol liypolliecalion 
ol cars purcliased under llie sclieiiie

T'errns of repayiiieiil -  equal nionllily inslaliiienis 
over llie lenn of loans

Unsecured Loans
(Ifepayable lalesi by IJecember 2015}

Eroin Limiled Companies 
Dealers Deposits 

Tolal

5. LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Provisions for Leave Encaslinient 

Tolal

17.32.480  
18,75,000

Nil
36.07.480

1,50,95,259
5.60,768

1,45.34,491

1,65,35,533

1,65,35,533

2.62.50.000

2.62.50.000

71,96,355
(1,62,58,649)

(90,62,294)

4 ,82,57,730

2,53,120

9,00,00,000
87,33,638

9,89,86,758

27.28.599

27.28.599

17.32.480 
Nil 
Nil

17.32.480

1,50..%,027
5.60,768

1,50,95,2.59

1.65,35.533

1,65.35..5,33

(87,95,731)
1,59.92,086

71,96,355

3,88.27,147

87,50,000
6,60,004

11,45,00,000
86,%,638

13,26,0C),642

20.96.581

20.96.581



6. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
Secured
Cash Ciedil from Brinks
Buyers Credit in foreign Currency from Banks 
(Secured by liypolliecalion by way ol piiii-passu 
firsi charge of ali exisling and fulure slocks of Haw 
Malerials, finished Goods, Sloies, presenl and 
future Book Dehls and colalerally pari passu 
second charge on fixed assets and eijuilable 
mortgnge on iininovalile properly)
Unsecured
from  Limited Companies 

I'olnl

7. OTHER CURRENT I.IABILITICS
Inleresl accrued bul nol due 
InleresI acciued and due 
Dividend unpaid / unclaimed

31st March, 2013  

?

12,96,60,578
1,87,25,915

31st March, 2012 

?

7,19,75,542
3,91.66,627

8 .

'fotal

FIXED ASSETS

9,87,00,000

24,70,86,493

70,35,957
43,684

70,79,641

11.83.00,000

22,94.42,169

1,3.5,721
62,9,5,844

43,684

64.75,249

G R O S S  B L O C K D E P R E C I A r i O N N E T  B L O C K

A.<; at 

3 1 s t  

M a r c h  

20  12

A d d i ­

tions

S a le s /  

A d ju s t -  

m e fi 1 s

A s  at 
31 st  

M a r c h  

2 0 1 3

U p lo  

3 1 st 

M a r c h  

2 0 1 2

Fo r

the

period

.Sale.s / 

A(J)ijst- 

menf

U p l o

3 l 8 t

M a r c h

2 0 1 3

As at 
3 1 s t  

M a r c h  

2 0 1 3

A s  a l 

3 1 s t  

M a r c h  

2 0 1 2

? T 7 ? ? ? 7
TAN G IBLE A S S E T S

Lan(j 52.70.000 - - 52,70,000 - - - 52,70,000 52,70,000

Buildings 4.05 ,15 .225 97,21.996 3,08.934 4.99 .28,207 2.07 .78,002 16,30,999 1,44,845 2.22 ,64 ,156 2,76 ,64,131 1,97 ,37,223

Plants & Macliinery 16,00 38  739 3.99 .77,992 - 20.00,16.731 7,37 ,93  730 42 41.904 7,80 .35,634 12,19,61,097 8,62 ,45,009

Computer 18,35.98.3 1.30,818 - 19.66,801 16,65.651 56,314 - 17,21,965 2,44 ,836 1,70,332

Water A Acid 

Installations 1.88,149 _ _ 1,88,449 1.86,030 371 1,86,401 2,048 2,419

Laboratory

Equipments 1,23.005 12,000 _ 1.35,005 91.714 4,426 9 6 ,1 40 36,865 31,291

Furniture & Fitfings 21 80.272 -- - 21.00,272 18.09,575 56,770 - 18.66,345 3,13 ,927 3,70 ,697

Motor Cars 

& Trucks 20.28.686 — _ 20,28.666 10,15,669 2,62 ,270 __ 12,77,939 7,50 ,747 10,13.017

Electric Installations 3.55.631 12.975 - 3,68,606 3.47.290 1,224 - 3.48 ,514 20,0 92 8,341

21 25,35 990 4,98,55.781 3.08 934 26.20.82.837 9.96.87 661 62  64 278 1.44.845 10.57.97.094 15,62.85.743 11,28,48,329

Plant Under 

Erection - - - - - - - - - 2,88 .41 ,679

TOTAL 31.25.35 990 4 98,55.781 3.08,934 26,20,82,837 9,96,87.661 63.54 278 1,44.845 10,57.97.094 15.62.85,743 14,16,90.008

P R E V IO U S Y E A R 33.22,57.814 58.60 672 2.55 .82,496 21.25.35.990 11,40.42.680 52.03,134 1.95,58.153 9,96 .87.661 11,28,48,329 11.82,15,134

G ro ss Block ol Fixed A ssets includes R s  3 02.17,953/- (Previous year R s  3 02,17 953/-) on account ol revaluation carried out in 1985 Consequent to the said revaluation there 

is additional charge of deprecialion of Rs. 5.60,768/- (Previous year R s  5,60 768/-) atid equivalent amount has been wittidrawn from Revaluation Reserve & Lo ss account. This 

h a s not impact on profit lor Hie year



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

9. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Oilier than trade - In (jouelnnient or Trust Securities :
G year National Savings Cerlilicale (Vlll Issue) deposited 
as Securily willi Collector of Cuslotns
6 year NalionnI Savings Cerlificale (VIII Issue) deposited 
as Securily with Sales fax Department, Udaipur

Total

6,000

20,000

6,000

20,000

26,000 26,000

10. DEFERRED TAX 
Deferred Tax Asset
Lossed / Unabsorbed de|irecialion under Income l ax 
Deferred Tax Liability
Related to time dilference of Deprecialion on fixed assels 

Tolal

2,73,64,903

2,12,50,372

61,14,531

1,59,72,217

1,81,67,000

(21,94,783)

11. LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured considered good)
Securily Deposils
Advance (or Taxation (net of [irovisions)
Rs. NIL, previous year Rs. 10,12,705)

T'olal

12. INVENTORIES
(As valued and certified by the Management) 
Raw malerials 
I’aclcing Malerials 
Stores & S|iare I’arls 
Tinished Goods 

Total

42,86,185
5,15,949

48,02,134

4,11,45,013
13,03,385

1,29,43,350
3,58,59,835

9,12,51,583

48,60,357
18,45,384

67,05,741

3,43,65,801
6,14,077

1,14.84,120
68,07,011

5.32,7 l,a )9

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured considered good)
Outstanding (or a period exceeding six rnonlhs 
Below six months 
Subsidy (rom Cenlral Government 

Total

229
6,25,02,286

21,68,49,209

27,93,51,724

4,06,466
2,12.44,951

23.41,03,275

25,57,54,692



14. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Bank :
CurrenI A/c.
Unpaid Dividend 
Fixed Deposit /Vc.
(pledged against inaryin/guaranlee)
Cash on hand

Total

15. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured Crrnsidered Good)
Advance recoverable in Cash or in kind 
or for value lo be leceived

Advance wilh Cenlral Excise 

I'olal

16 . OTHER INCOME

Profil on Sale of Idxerl Assels 

Scrap Sales 

Tolal

17.INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN FINISHED G O O DS

Closing slock
Less : Opening Slock
Balance

Add : Increase / (Decrease) in Excise Duly 

Tolal

18 . COST OF MATERIALS CONSUM ED
Raw Malerials 
Rock Phosphale 

Sulphuric Acid 

Spend Acid 

Others

I’acking Malerials 

Tolal

3 1 s t  Marcli, 2 0 1 3

67,858
43,684

3,71,79,125
6 ,66,770

3,79,57,437

1 ,5 0 ,4 8 ,4 7 5

2 ,9 5 ,0 8 1

1 ,5 3 ,4 3 ,5 5 6

9 3 ,1 1 1

1 0 ,0 8 ,4 0 7

1 1 ,0 1 ,5 1 8

3 ,5 8 ,5 9 ,8 3 5
(6 8 ,0 7 ,0 1 1 )

2 ,9 0 ,5 2 ,8 2 4

(2 ,4 7 ,8 3 9 )

2 ,8 8 ,0 4 ,9 8 5

3 5 ,3 9 ,4 7 ,0 1 8

1 0 ,1 4 ,0 6 ,8 2 6

1 ,4 0 ,6 1 ,7 5 7

2 2 ,3 0 ,2 0 0

1 ,3 2 ,4 2 ,6 5 7

4 8 ,4 8 ,8 8 ,4 5 8

31st March, 2012

47,884
43,684

1.74.51.900
3,67.787

1,79,11,255

1,17,78,633

2 ,54 ,390

1.20,33,023

1,99,742

3,53,792

5 ,53,534

68,07,011

(4,09,70,248)
(3,41.63,237)

1,38,164

(3,40,25,073)

37,43,95,429

11,89,38,637

2.21,74,416

16,86,168

1,59,42,090

53,31,36,740



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

19 . EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salary. Wages, Bonus, Graluily etc.

Staff Welfare 

Contribution lo :

Provident & Other Funds 
F.mployees State Insurance 

Tolal

2 0 . MANUFACTURING & OTHER EXPENSES
Payment lo Audilors :

Audil Fee 

Cerlilicalioii Fee 
l ax Audil t'ee 

Brokerage & Commission 

Charily & Donalion 

Consumplion ol Slures and Spares 
Director's Fees 

Dislribulion F.xpenses 

Freighl, Delivery 

Packing Expenses
Informalion & Technology Expenses 

Insurance

Legal & Consullancy Expenses

Manufacturing Sc Supervision Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

Motor Vehicle Expenses

Other Mainlenaiice

Power and E’uel
Rales and Taxes

Kent

Repairs to Building 

Repairs lo Machinery 

Sales Tax ol Easlier years 

VAT & CS T

Excise Duly on Sale (Rake Point)

3 1 s t  March, 2 0 1 3  

?

1 ,3 1 ,0 7 .0 4 1

1 7 ,0 9 ,4 6 9

1 1 ,0 3 ,7 8 3

1 ,4 2 ,7 2 4

1 ,6 0 ,6 3 ,0 1 7

2 8 ,0 9 0

4 7 ,7 5 2
1 1 ,2 3 6

9 0 ,7 3 ,8 7 2

2 ,1 7 ,3 0 4
1 ,3 7 ,2 4 ,6 6 7

3 ,9 4 ,4 9 ,9 3 1

4 0 ,4 7 ,3 7 0
2 0 ,7 7 2

3 ,2 6 ,1 4 7

3 ,2 3 ,0 2 9

5 0 ,6 3 ,9 2 1

2 9 ,7 5 ,6 7 9

4 ,8 9 ,0 5 8

2 1 ,6 0 ,5 2 5

1 ,6 1 ,3 3 ,1 5 2
8 ,7 9 ,6 2 9

3 6 ,2 5 ,7 8 8
8 ,2 0 ,0 1 5

1 1 ,3 2 ,4 7 5

1 ,8 2 ,0 0 ,2 1 6

5 ,0 7 ,3 2 8

31st March, 2012 
?

1,18,19,287

12,54,481

9,04 ,809

84.587

1,40,63,164

28.090

39,233
11,236

4 ,01 ,600

3,500

73,54,627

90,000

80 ,74 ,120

4 ,87,07,338
30 ,74 ,866

39,827

2,57,352

1,92,820

37 ,21 ,354

27 ,00 .927

3,39,412
21 ,61 ,690

1.41.08,347
8 ,81,229

2 ,10,000

7,93,803

13,64,773

9,87,609

1,48,99,643



2 1 . FINANCE COST
Interest

Less ; Received

Bank Charges 
Other Charges

Toreign Exchange Rale Difference Loss / (Gains)

Tolal

2 2 . CURRENT TAX
In view of hvouglil foi ward losses and 
unabsorberl deprecialion. (here is no 
current lax payable

2 3 . EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

Nel Profil afler lax as per SlalemenI of 
Profit & 1.0.SS allribulable to Equily Shareholders 
Weighted Average num ber of Equily Shares
u.sed as demoninaliiig for calculafing EPS 

Basic and Dilnled earning per share 
Face Value per Equily Share

2 4 . COMMITMENT

Commitment of Capilal Expendilure nol provided for 
in the accounts esiimaled at Rs. 22,00.000/- 
(Previous year Rs. f)7.00.(X)0/-)

2 5 . CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Conlingenl Liabiiilies nol provided for in respect of :

i. Guaranlec Rs. 1.99,660/- (Previous year Rs. 1,99.660/-)

ii. Income Tax mailer under appeal Rs. 2.71,910/- in respect of TDS 
sliorl deposil for A.Y. 2007-08 before C.l. T. (A).
(lYevious year Rs. 51.22.889/- for Income Tax A.Y. 2006-07 for 
Income Tax Assessmenl.)

2 6 . SATISFACTION OF CAR LOAN

Pelilion is pending willi Com pany l.aw Board, Kolkala Bench

3 1 s t  Marcli, 2 0 1 3  

?

4 ,1 7 ,7 9 ,7 1 0

(2 2 ,1 4 ,3 0 0 )

3 ,9 5 ,6 5 ,4 1 0

3 7 ,4 5 ,3 8 2

6 ,8 2 ,8 6 4

2 ,1 1 ,2 1 3

4 ,4 2 ,0 4 ,8 6 9

(1 ,6 2 ,5 8 ,6 4 9 )

3 6 ,0 7 ,4 8 0

(9 .1 1 )
10.00

31st March, 2012 

?

3,72,71,223

(19,93,668)

3 ,52 ,77,555

17,91,730

4 ,81,885

(7,08,552

3,68,42,618

1,59,92,086

17,32,480

9.23

10.00



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

2 7 . DISCLOSURE A S PER A S 1 5  (REVISED)

Valuation of Obligations at the beginning of the year
Expected Return on Plan Asset

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Actuarial Gain / (I.o.ss)

Value of Plan Assel al year end

Value of Obligation at llic end of Hie year

Balance recognised in Hie accounls

2 8 . EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
Purctiase of Raw MateriaLs (C & E value)

2 9 . VALUE OF RAW MATERIALS, STORES &
SPARE PARTS CONSUM ED

a. Raw Malerials %

Imporled 7 5 .0 5

Indigenous 2 4 .9 5

b. Slores & Spare Paris
Imported —

Indigenous 1 0 0 .0 0

3 0  A. DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS  
WITH RELATED PARTIES (AS-18)

(a) N am e of Key M anagem ent Personnel

i. Sliri Suresh Kumar Bangur — Execulive Direclor

ii. Sliri M. 1). Damani — Director & Secretary

(b) R em uneration paid to Key M anagem ent Personnel

Salaries

Coiilriliulioii lo I’rovidend I'und Sr 
Superaiinualioii Policy

OHier Perquisiles

3 1 s t  March, 2 0 1 3  

?

G ratuity
(F und ed )

5 7 ,9 7 ,0 3 8
4 ,6 3 ,9 2 0
4 ,6 1 ,6 8 6

3 ,3 4 ,9 0 4
(5 1 ,9 2 3 )

9 ,3 1 ,3 4 0
7 4 ,8 9 ,0 0 0

7 4 ,7 3 ,0 4 5
7 4 ,7 3 ,0 4 7

2 9 ,1 0 ,9 6 ,3 5 8

3 5 ,3 9 ,4 7 ,0 1 7

1 1 ,7 6 ,9 8 ,7 8 4

9 0 ,7 3 ,8 7 2

1 6 ,7 1 ,9 0 0

4 ,4 8 ,4 6 7

6 ,4 0 ,3 7 9

31st March, 2012 

?

Leave E ncashm ent 
(N on  Funded)

20,96,581

1,56,948

70,296

(2,69,467)

6 ,74,241

27 .28 .599

27 .28.599

32 ,26,54,393

72.39 37 ,43 ,95 ,429

27.61 14,27,99,221

100.00 73,54.627

5 ,31 ,900

1,41,320

1,67,525



B. TRANSACTION WITH ASSOCIATES /  RELATED PARTIES

3 1 s t  March, 2 0 1 3 31st March, 2012

Loan Loan Interest
R ece iv ed R epaid Paid

in la cs in la cs in la cs

a. Art lunance & Trade Pvl. Lid. 1 6 4 .0 0 1 3 6 ,0 0 1 4 .8 9
(Previous year) 31.00 69.15 4.27

b. Atrhinandan Goods Pvt. Ltd. N il 6 .0 0 0 .5 5
(f’revious year) N.A. N A. N.A.

c. Kettlewell Bullen & Co. Ltd. N il N il 3 1 .0 5
(I’revious year) 330.00 100.00 9.32

d. Madhav Trading Coqioralion Ltd. 1 0 0 .0 0 N il 2 3 .0 1
(Previous year) 100.00 Nil 0.37

e. Credwyn Holdings f’vl. Ltd. 1 2 5 .0 0 7 5 .0 0 8 .7 7
(Previous year) Nil Nil Nil

In absence of informations relating to micro small and medium enterprises, informalion relating to current

3 2 .

iiideblednessm as required under Scliedule VI, Pari I of the Com panies Act, 1956 are not ascertainable.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Com pany, commensureale wilh its forex risk m anagem ent policy towards imports, buyers credit and import
contracis enters inlo foreign currency forward contracts and currency opiions conlrads lo manage its exposure in
foreign exchange rale variations.

Oulslanding exposure and hedging thereof as on 31.03.2013 are as follows :

Particulars

I Exposure

a. Payable for imports made

b. Payable for buyers credit availed

c. Payable for import contract executed

II I ledging

a. 1‘oi-wards Eulures purchased

b. Call Options purchased 

3 3 . Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary.

Signatures to the noles on Accounts.

A m ou nt

U S$

3 8 ,4 7 ,4 0 0

3 ,4 1 ,2 3 1

2 1 ,6 2 ,0 0 0

1 4 ,6 0 ,0 0 0

Amount

US$

7.56.000 

7,81,527

9.87.000

13,85,000

4,59,00

For BA T L IB O I, P U R O II IT  &  D A R B A R I
Firm Reg. No. 3U3086E 
Chartered Armuntnriis 
H E M A L  M EH TA  
Partner
Membership N o .: 063404



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIM ITED
Reijislerecl Otiice : 14. N. S. Road. Kolkala-700 001

NAMF, ANP APPRF5S

ANN U A l. t;KNEK/\l, M E E T IN U  ON 12.08.2013 al 11.30 A.M. 
Suinaiiy C onlerence 
M C C  C lian ibcr. <>(' C 'onimcrce 
1511. Heinnnl Itasu Sarani.
K olkala - 7(XI (XU.

A D M I S S I O N  S L I P

PLEASE HAND OVEH TH IS A D M ISS IO N  
SL IP  AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING  

HALL

F a  JO NO.: 
DPID:
Cl . ID NO.:

HOLDING

MKMBER PROXY

NAMF. o r  THE PROXY (IN CAPITAL 
L F T T FR S )

I hereby register iny presence al Ihe tneeling.

Signature o l the M ember/Proxy

THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIM ITED
Registered Office : 14, N. S. Road, Kolkala-700 001

I/We.

of

(  P R O X Y  F O R M  ^

FOUONO.: HOLDING
L>Pll):
UJDNO.;

w

in the district of ..............................................................  being a member/metnbets of The P h o sp h a te  C o. Ltd.

hereby appoint ..................................................................................................................  of... ................................................

in Ihe district of ........................................................................................................................................................................

or failing him   of .................................................

in Ihe district of ........................................................................................................................................................................

as my / our Proxy lo vole lor me / us on my / our behalf on Ihe Annual General Meeling of Ihe Com pany lo 
be held on Monday, Ihe 12lli August, 2013 and at any adjourmeni thereof

Signed this ....................................... day of ..2013

/ pro x y  fo rm  m u st  RFACI ICO M PA w s 
RF.GISTF.RF.n OFFICE NOT I A7F.R THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE

Vti if  co m m e n c e m e n t  o f  th e  meftinc;__________________

(  1 OK OFFICE USE ONLY
PROXY NO. DA1f;<TF HLaJTT

AFFtX
KEVENDF

STAMP

Signature



BOOK-POST

If undelivered please return to :

THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
14, Netaji Subhas Road, 3rd floor 
Kolkata - 700 001


